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To

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Members of
Axis Finance Limited

Report on the audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

1.

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS Financial Statements (“Financial Statements”) of Axis
Finance Limited (hereinafter referred as “the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at
March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its profit
including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

3.

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(“SAs”), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are
further described in the “Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI") together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act, and the
rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters

4.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
In our audit of the Financial Statements of the financial year ended March 31, 2023. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.




Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

B. K. Khare & Co.
Chartered Accountants

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated
in our report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the
audit of the Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements. The results of our
audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the
basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying Financial Statements.

Sr.
No

Key Audit Matter

How the Key Audit Matter was addressed in

our audit

1

Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on Loans and

Advances and Investments

Ind AS 109: Financial Instruments (“Ind AS
109”) requires the Company to provide for
impairment of its Loan & Advances and
Investments (“Financial Instruments”) using
the Expected Credit Losses (“ECL")
approach. ECL involves an estimation of

probability-weighted loss on Financial
Instruments over their life, considering
reasonable and supportable information

about past events, current conditions, and
forecasts of future economic conditions
which could impact the credit quality of the
Company's loans and advances and
Investments.

In the process, a significant degree of

judgement has been applied by the
management for:
a) Defining qualitative/ quantitative

thresholds for ‘significant increase in credit
risk’ (“SICR”) and ‘default’ categorically for
corporate portfolio, wherein Company’s
credit risk function also segregates loans
with specific risk characteristics based on
trigger events identified using sufficient and
credible information available from internal
sources supplemented by external data.
Impairment allowance for these exposures
are reviewed and accounted on a case by
case basis.

b) Determining effect of less frequent past
events on future probability of default

c) Grouping of borrowers based on
homogeneity by using appropriate statistical
techniques

d) Determining macro-economic factors
impacting credit quality of receivables

e) Data inputs - The application of ECL
model requires Inputs from several data
sources

Our Audit Approach:

Our audit approach was a combination of test
of internal controls and

substantive procedures which included the
following:

a)

b)

d)

Evaluating the Company’s policies, as
approved by the Board of Directors, for
impairment of Financial Instruments and
assessing compliance with the policies in
terms of Ind AS 109: Financial Instruments.

Obtained an understanding of the
modelling techniques / model adopted by
the Company including the key inputs and
assumptions including management
overlays

Evaluated the reasonableness of the
management estimates by analysing the
underlying assumptions and testing of
controls around data extraction / validation.

Assessed the criteria for staging of loans
based on their past-due status to check
compliance with requirement of Ind AS 109.
Tested samples of performing (stage 1)
loans to assess whether any SICR or loss
indicators were present requiring them to
be classified under stage 2 or 3.

Assessed the additional considerations
applied by the management to conclude
that there is “Significant increase in credit
risk” or that event of “Default” has occurred.

Tested the ECL model, including
assumptions, underlying computation and
computation of ECL provision performed by
the Company on sample basis to assess
the arithmetical accuracy and compliance
with requirements of Ind — AS 109.

%
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How the Key Audit Matter was addressed in |

our audit

a)

h)

We also made management enquiries with
respect to the overlay quantum.

Discussed with the management, the
approach, interpretation, systems and
controls implemented in relation to
probability of default and stage-wise
bifurcation of product-wise portfolios for
timely ascertainment of stress and early
warning signals.

Read and assessed the disclosures
included in the Ind AS financial statements
in respect of expected credit losses with the
requirements of Ind AS 107 Financial
Instruments: Disclosure (“Ind AS 107”) and
Ind AS 109

N

Information Technology (IT) Systems and Controls

The Company’s key financial accounting
and reporting processes are highly
dependent on the automated controls over
the Company’s information systems, such
that there exists a risk that gaps in the IT
general control environment could result in
a misstatement of the financial accounting
and reporting records. Accordingly, we
have considered user access management,
segregation of duties and controls over
system change over key financial
accounting and reporting systems, as a key
audit matter

—

Our Audit Approach:

With the assistance of our IT specialists, we
obtained an understanding of the Company's IT
applications, databases and operating systems
relevant to financial reporting and the control
environment.

Our audit approach was a combination of test of
internal controls and substantive procedures on
the areas of the IT infrastructure, which majorly
focused access security (including controls over
privileged access), program change controls,
database management and network operations.
In particular, our activity included the following:
General IT controls design, observation and
operation:

» Understood the changes made in the IT

environment during the year and
ascertained its effect on the financial
statements controls and accounts.

Tested key controls operating over the
information technology in relation to
financial accounting and reporting systems,
including system access and system
change management, program
development and computer operations.

User access controls operation:
> Obtained management’s evaluation of the

access rights granted to applications
relevant to financial accounting and
reporting systems and tested resolution of a
sample of expectations.

g
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Sr. Key Audit Matter How the Key Audit Matter was addressed in
No our audit

» Further, we assessed the operating
effectiveness of controls over granting,
removal and appropriateness of access
rights.

Application controls:

» We tested the design and operating
effectiveness of automated controls critical
to financial accounting and reporting.

» For any identified deficiencies, tested the
design and operating effectiveness of
compensating controls and, where
necessary, extended the scope of our
substantive audit procedures

» Our tests also included testing of the
compensating controls or alternate
procedures to assess whether there were
any unaddressed IT risks that would
materiality impact the Financial Statements. |

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report thereon

5.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s Annual Report but does not include the
Financial Statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

8.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act, with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133
of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
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10.

preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

1.

12.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

12.1 lIdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

12.2 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

12.3 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

12.4 Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

12.5 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including

the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in
(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the Financial Statements.

13. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

14. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

15. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements for the financial year ended
March 31, 2023 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

16. The Financial Statements includes comparative financial information of the Company for the year
ended March 31, 2022 which were audited by Singhi & Co., one of the Joint Auditors, where they
have expressed an unmodified opinion vide report dated April 14, 2022. Accordingly, we, do not
express any opinion, as the case may be, on the figures reported in the statements for the year
ended March 31, 2022.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

17. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act and on the basis of such
checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to
the information and explanations given to us, we give in the “Annexure A”, a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

18. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

18.1 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

18.2 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

18.3 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account.
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18.4

18.5

18.6

18.7

19.

19.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors in the meeting dated April 13, 2023, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these Financial
Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B”.

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2023 has been paid
/ provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of Section 197
read with Schedule V to the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we report as under:

1 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at March 31, 2023 on its
financial position in its Ind AS Financial Statements — Refer Note 34 to the Financial
Statements;

19.2 The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which

there were any material foreseeable losses;

19.3 There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education

and Protection Fund by the Company.

19.4

(a) The management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s)
or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend to or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement
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19.5 The Board of Directors of the Company have not proposed any dividend for the year which
is subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

19.6 As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 relating to audit trail
feature of the Company’s accounting software is applicable to the Company only with effect
from financial year beginning April 1, 2023, the reporting under Clause (g) of Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the current year.

For Singhi & Co. For B. K. Khare & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302049E Firm Registration No. 105102W

f

(s

Shweta Singhal
Partner
Membership No. 414420 Membership No: 040852

UDIN: 23414420BGVLGT1209 UDIN: 23040852BGUQZG6317
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: April 13, 2023 Date: April 13, 2023

Aniruddha Joshi
Partner
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 17 of the Independent Auditors Report of even date to the
members of Axis Finance Limited (the “Company”) in the Financial Statements as of and for the year
ended March 31, 2023 under the heading “Report on other Legal and Regulatory requirements”.

i. In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant & Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of Intangible Assets.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable having regard
to the size of the operations of the Company and no material discrepancies were noticed
during the verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties included in Property,
Plant and Equipment are held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of
Use assets) or intangible assets during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been initiated
or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

(a) The Company is primarily engaged in lending business. Accordingly, it does not hold any
inventories. Thus, paragraph 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in
aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Basis
the information and explanation provided to us and basis our audit procedures undertaken, we
have not come across any difference between the information submitted in the quarterly
returns / statements filed by the company with such banks or financial institutions when
compared with the books of account and other relevant information provided by the Company.

ii.

(a) The Company is primarily engaged in lending activities and hence reporting under paragraph

3(iii)(a) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) Considering that the Company is a Non — Banking Finance Company, the investments made,
security given and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature
of loans are not prima facie prejudicial to the Company’s interest. According to information and
explanations provided to us, the Company has not provided any guarantees during the year.

(c) In respect of the loans given and advances in the nature of loans, the Company has stipulated
the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest. However, given the nature of
business of the Company being a Non — Banking Finance Company, there are some cases
during the year and as at March 31, 2023 wherein the amounts were overdue vis-a-vis
stipulated terms.

(d) In respect of loans granted and advances in the nature of loans, provided by the Company,
the total amount overdtﬁgr_nque than ninety days as on March 31, 2023 is as under:
SING G
¥ S\
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No. of Principal Amount Interest Overdue Total Overdue Remarks
Cases Overdue # (Rs. in lakh) # (Rs. in lakh) (if any)
(Rs. in lakh)
[ 8,227 10,518.59 1,025.75 11,544.34 | NA ]

*excludes the amount written off.

Further, basis discussions with the management we understand that the reasonable steps
have been taken by the Company for recovery of the principal and interest.

(e) The Company is engaged primarily in lending activities and hence reporting under paragraph
3(iii)(e) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) Basis the information and explanations provided to us, we did not come across loans or
advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms
or period of repayment. Thus, reporting under paragraph 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans, made investments, provided guarantees or securities given in contravention
with the provisions of the Section 185 of the Act. The Company has complied with the provisions
of Section 186(1) of the Act; the other provisions of Section 186 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company.

V. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposit during the year and does not have any unclaimed deposits as at March 31, 2023 to which
the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Section 73 to 76 or any
other relevant provisions of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder apply. Accordingly, reporting
under paragraph 3(v) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

vi. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under Section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company. Thus,
reporting under paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

vii. In respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including
Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax,
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory
dues to the appropriate authorities.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services Tax, provident
fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise, value added tax, cess and any other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31,
2023, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records, there are no statutory dues referred to in sub clause (a) that have not been
deposited on account of any dispute except for disputed income tax dues as tabulated below:

Name of Nature of Amount Period to which the Forum where the
. the Statue Dues (Rs. in lakh) amount relates disputes are pending
Income Tax | Income Tax 70.87 Assessment Year 2012-13 Commissioner of
Demand ' ' | Assessment Year 2016-17 Income Tax (Appeals) |

/577 \&
[2 o
(3 - JO \ '
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Name of Nature of Amount Period to which the Forum where the
the Statue Dues (Rs. in lakh) amount relates disputes are pending
Income Tax Income Tax Appellate
147.14 | Assessment Year 2016-17 Tribunal (ITAT)
Income Tax 524 60 Assessment Year 2017-18 Commissioner of
' Assessment Year 2018-19 Income Tax (Appeals)

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions which have
not been recorded in the books of account but have been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
the repayment of loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) Basis the information and explanation provided to us, the Company has not been declared a
willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and to the best of our knowledge
and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the Company were applied during the year for
the purpose for which the loans were obtained, other than temporary deployment pending
application of proceeds.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-
term basis do not seem to have been utilized during the year for long-term purposes.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiaries / associates / joint ventures. Accordingly,
reporting under paragraph 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. According
reporting under paragraph 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under paragraph 3 (x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year and hence
reporting under paragraph 3 (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and according to the information and explanations
given by the management, there were 7 instances of fraud on the Company by its customers
amounting to Rs. 28.39 lakh as disclosed in Note no. 52 to the Financial Statements. We did
not come across any other instances of fraud by the Company.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
has been filed by cost auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under
Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company
during the year while determining the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures.
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Xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

xiii. According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the
details have been disclosed in the notes to the Ind AS financial statements, as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

Xiv.
(a) In our opinion the company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size
and nature of its business.

(b) We have taken into consideration, the internal audit reports for the period under audit issued
to the Company till the date of Auditors’ Report for determining the nature, timing and extent
of audit procedures.

XV. According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them as referred to in
Section 92 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

XVi.

(a) The Company has registered as required, under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934 (2 of 1934).

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company holds a valid
Certificate of Registration (CoR).

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India and hence reporting under paragraph 3 (xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(d) Thereis no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report
on clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not incurred any cash losses during the financial year
covered by our audit and the immediately preceding financial year.

Xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditor during the year and accordingly requirement
to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

XiX. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios
disclosed in Note 41, 41A and 44 to the Financial Statements, ageing and expected dates of
realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, undrawn credit lines, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they
fall due.




Singhi & Co. B. K. Khare & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

XX.
(@) The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) and there is no unspent CSR amount on account of ongoing projects or other than
ongoing projects for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VIl to the
Companies Act or special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of section

135 of the said Act.

(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be
transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of
Companies Act. This matter has been disclosed in Note 29 to the Financial Statements.

xXi. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, there are no subsidiaries / associates / joint ventures of the Company
and hence the paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable.

For Singhi & Co. For B. K. Khare & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302049E Firm Registration No. 105102W

Shweta Singhal
Partner
Membership No. 414420 Membership No: 040852

UDIN: 23414420BGVLGT1209 UDIN: 23040852BGUQZG6317
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: April 13, 2023 Date: April 13, 2023

R

Aniruddha Joshi
Partner
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred in paragraph 18.6 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements of AXIS
FINANCE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023
based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’'s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control with reference to the financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10)
of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit
of Internal Financial Controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to the financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether

due to fraud or error.

5 %
i ; r’ \.?‘:;] %
e\ “Z—Jo,

N o :
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Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with reference to the financial

statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the financial statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to the financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company's internal financial control with reference to the financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that:

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the Company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the Financial
Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to The Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to the financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

For Singhi & Co. For B. K. Khare & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302049E <s ';VE:“ Firm Registration No. 105102W
{ b )
e
Shweta Singhal Animoshi
Partner n5at Partner
Membership No. 414420 Membership No: 040852
UDIN: 23414420BGVLGT1209 UDIN: 23040852BGUQZG6317
Place;: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: April 13, 2023 Date: April 13, 2023



AXIS FINANCE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

{All amounts are in rupees lakhs, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

Particulars Note As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
ASSETS
Financlal Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4 75,516.06 34,585.53
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 4a - 183.13
Derivative financial instruments 13 = 407.28
Recewables 5
a) Trade Receivables 13.88 601.98
b) Other Receivables -
Loans 6 22,00,624.96 16,08,309.70
Investments 7 90,932.59 68,923.83
Other financial assets 8 13,630.24 1,075.45
Sub-total-Financial Assets 23,80,717.73 17,14,086.90
Non-Financial Assets
Current Tax Assets (net) 9 7,465.77 3,261.56
Deferred Tax Assets (net) 9 7,972.24 8,811.62
Property, plant and equipment 10 612.89 414.11
Intangible assets under development 11 13.44 252.16
Other Intangible Assets 11 1,375.47 1,320.65
Right-of-use assets 39 1,584.80 2,457.14
Other non-financial assets 12 983.37 1,037.60
Sub-total-Non-Financlal Assets 20,007.98 17,554.84
Total - Assets 24'00I725'71 17,31!641.74
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financlal Uabilities
Payables 14
i) Trade Payables
a) total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises - 18.62
b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 208.49 409.87
i} Other Payables
a) total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises 269.47 239.04
b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 3,381.30 1,650.63
Dabt securities 15 7,96,355.45 8,25,213.20
{Borrowings (Other than debt securities) 16 10,50,807.34 5,49,456.66
Subordinated Liabilities 17 1,53,020.77 98,956.16
Lease Liabilities 39 1,658.52 2,612.55
Other financial liabilities 18 70,668.81 28,602.83
Sub-total-Financlal Uiabilitles 20,76,370.15 15,07,159.56
Non-Financial llabilities
Current tax liabilities (net} 9 3,364.94 2,418.79
Provisions 19 2,928.78 1,986.48
Other non-financial liabilities 20 904.75 964.16
Sub-total-Non-Flnanclal Uabilities 7,198.47 5,369.43
Total-llabilities 20,83,568.62 15,12,528.99
EQUITY
Equity share capital 21 59,081.39 53,851.25
Other equity 22 2,58,075.70 1,65.261.50
Total - Equity 3,17,157.09 2,19,112.75
Total - Liabllitles and Equity 24,00,725.71 17,31,641.74
Significant accounting policies and notes to the financial statements 2-85

The accompanying notes farm an integral part of the financial statements

As per our attached report of even date
For Singhi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration No. 302049€

L%

Shweta Singhal

Partner

Membership No.: 414420
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: April 13, 2023

For B.K.Khare & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICALEFFm Registration No.105102W {

Aniruddhh Joshi W
Partner

Membership No.: 040852

Place of Signature: Mumbai

Date: April 13, 2023
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For and on behalf of the board of Axis Finance Limited

Amitabh Chaudhry
Chairman
DIN No: 00531120

Blpin Kumar Saraf
Managing Director
DIN No: 06416744

e

AmIEh lyer

Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 51849

gk Koo

Rajneagh Kumar

Company Secretary
Membership No: A31230
Date: April 13,2023




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in rupees lakhs, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

Particul Not For the year ended For the year ended
articulars €1 March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Revenue from operations

Interast Income 23 2,13,624.87 1,37,223.20
Fees and commission Income 23a 4,325.83 624.94
Net gain on fair value changes 24 575.39 2,434.74
Net gain/{loss) on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category 14,132.15 3,055.01
Total Revenue from operations 2,32,658.24 1,43,337.89
Other Income = =
Total income 2,32,658.24 1,43,337.89
Expenses

Finance Costs 25 1,19,638.64 69,735.55
Impairment on financial instruments 26 6,534.16 7,287.83
Employee benefits expenses 27 19,250.00 13,495.12
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 28 1,556.74 1,019.27
Others expenses 29 8.336.99 5,396.93
Total expenses 1,55,316.53 96,934.70
Profit before exceptional items and tax 77,341.71 46,403.19
Exceptional Iltems - =
Profit before taxes 77,341.71 46,403.19
Tax expenses

- Current Tax 18,638.61 13,006.87
- Deferred Tax 792.95 (1,237.62)
Profit for the year 57,910.15 34,633.94
Other Comprehensive Income

(A) items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss

-Re-measurements of net defined benefit plans 190.84 (4.06)
-Income tax impact 48.03 (1.02)
Sub-total (A) 142.81 (3.08)
(B) Items that will be reclassified to profit and loss

-Fair value changes on derivative designated as cash flow hedge {6.39) 6.39
-Income tax impact (1.61) 161
Sub-total (B) (4.78) 4.78
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) (A+B) 138.03 1.74
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 58,048.18 34,635.68
Paid-up Equity share capital (Face Value of X 10 each) 59,081.39 53,851.25
Earnings per equity share

Basic (X) 10.12 7.08
Diluted (X ) 10.12 7.08
Significant accounting policies and notes to the financial statements 2-85

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our attached report of even date
For Singhi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 302049E

v i

g

Shweta Singhal

Partner

Membership No.: 414420
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: Aprif 13, 2023

For B.K.Khare & Co.
ered Accountants
Firm Registration No.105102wW

Anirudiiha Joshi ' 2\
Pai liver | | S ||
Membership No.: 040852 \

Place of Signature: Mumbai

Date: April 13, 2023

or ahd on behalf of the board of Axis Finance Limited

Amitabh Chaudhry
Chairman
DIN No: 00531120

Bipin Kumar Saraf
Managing Director
DIN No: 06416744

Amith I§er

Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 51849

b Kukior -

Rajneesh Kumar
Company Secretary
Membership No: A31230
Date: April 13, 2023




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in rupees lakhs, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 77,341.71 46,403.19
Adjustments for:
Depreciation, amortization and impairment (other than right-of-use assets) 767.60 626.35
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 787.09 392.93
Net gain on fair value changes (575.39) (2,434.74)
Impairment on financial instruments 6,534.16 7,287.83
Employee Stock Option 59.54 284.63
Interest on Lease deposit (35.95) (10.93)
Amortisation of Lease rental 35.10 14.54
Provision for expenses 1,761.10 1,150.68
Provision for Employee Benefit expense 942.30 686.88
Interest income from investments (at amortised cost) (5,978.96) (5,497.77)
Interest income from investments (FVTPL) (1,658.67) (202.25)
Operating profit before working capital changes 79,983.63 48,701.34
Movement in working capital:
Decrease/(increase) in Bank Deposits 183.13 (8.60)
Decrease/(increase) in Derivative financial instruments 407.28 (407.28)
Decrease/(increase) in Trade Receivables 588.09 (77.04)
Decrease/(increase) in Loans (5,98,786.69) (6,07,482.68)
Decrease/(increase) in Other financial assets (12,557.94) (859.62)
Decrease/(increase) in Right-of-use assets 85.25 (1,163.06)
Decrease/(increase) in Other non-financial assets 54.23 (680.89)
(Decrease)/increase in Lease Liabilities (243.19) 1,114.70
(Decrease)/increase in Trade Payables 680.95 1,126.98
(Decrease)/increase in Other financial liabilities 42,926.13 21,791.99
(Decrease)/increase in Provisions (1,570.27) (1,154.74)
(Decrease)/increase in Other non-financial liabilities (65.80) 104.45
Cash generated from operations (4,88,315.20) (5,38,994.45)
Income tax paid (21,896.67) (9,518.70)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) (5,10,211.87) (5,48,513.15)
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Interest income from investments (at amortised cost) 8,117.62 5,812.47
Interest income from investments (FVTPL) 1,609.26 202.25
Sale of Intangibles 18.00 -
Purchase for Intangibles (384.99) (589.32)
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment (415.49) (377.94)
Sale of investment at Amortised Cost 20,791.00 15,34,111.37
Purchase of investment at Amortised Cost (38,329.83) (15,48,524.09)
Proceeds from sale of investment at FVTPL 2,91,295.57 56,395.65
Purchase of investment at FVTPL (2,97,342.14) (18,949.95)
Net cash flow from investing activities(B) (14,640.99) 28,080.44
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Increase/(decrease) in Debt securities (28,857.75) 36,315.18
Increase/(decrease) in Borrowings (Other than debt securities) 5,01,350.75 4,34,976.01
Increase/(decrease) in Subordinated Liabilities 54,064.61 38,966.11
Proceeds from issue of Equity Shares (net of share issue expenses) 39,936.62 39,944.38
Payment towards Lease Liability (710.84) (251.24)
Net cash flow from financing activities(C) 5,65,783.39 5,49,950.44
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and equivalents(A+B+C) 40,930.53 29,517.73
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 34,585.53 5,067.80
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 75,516.06 34,585.53
Cash - -
Balance with banks 45,536.59 14,585.53
tment in highly liquid securities 29,979.47 20,000.00
% 75,516.06 34,585.53




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are in rupees lakhs, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Additional disclosure pursuant to IND AS 7

Opening balance of Debt Securities, borrowings (other than debt securities)
and subordinated liabilities including interest accrued

14,73,626.02

9,63,368.79

Cash flows 5,26,557.61 5,10,257.31
Fair value adjustments - (0.08)
Closing balance of Debt Securities, borrowings (other than debt securities) and 20,00,183.63 14,73,626.02

subordinated liabilities

1. Net cash generated from operating activity is determined after adjusting the following:

Operational cash flows from interest

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest paid 1,21,778.02 81,331.35
Interest received 2,06,538.73 1,40,916.32

2. The above statement of cash flow has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows.

3. Purchase of PPE represents additions to property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets adjusted for movement of (a) capital-work-
in-progress for property, plant and equipment and {b) intangible assets under development during the period.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our attached report of even date
For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants /

ICAIl Firm Registration No. 302049¢€ /
i - Amitabh Chaudhry
Chairman

DIN No: 00531120
Shweta Singhal

Partner M

Membership No.: 414420
Place of Signature: Mumbai Bipin Kumar Saraf
Managing Director

Date: April 13, 2023
DIN No: 06416744

r and on behalf of the board of Axis Finance Limited

For B.K.Khare & Co. : v H\
Chartered Accountants /’L‘j{
ICAI Firm Registration No.105102W Amith lyer
; Chief Financial Officer
ﬁ Membership No: 51849
Aniruddha Joshi
Partner \E..._ ' 'Mln L’(LJ 1o

Membership No.: 040852
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: April 13, 2023

RajneeSh Kumar
Company Secretary
Membership No: A31230
Date: April 13, 2023



AXIS FINANCE LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts are in rupees lakhs, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

1. Equity Share Capital

Particulars Balance at the| Changes in Restated Changes in |Balance at the
beginning of | Equity Share | balanceat | equity share | end ofthe
the year Capital due the capital during year
to prior beginning the year
period errors of the
current
reporting

period
As at March 31, 2022 48,225.00 . - 5.626.25 53,851.25
As at March 31, 2023 53,851.25 - ~ 5.230.14 59,081.39

1A. Other equity

Particulars Reserves and Surplus Other Comprehensive Total
Income (OCl)
Statutory Securities Retained General Deemed |Remeasureme| Cash Flow
Reserve Premium Earnings Reserves Capital nt of Post Hedge
Contribution | Employment Reserve
Benefit
Obligations
|Balance as at April 1, 2021 25,054.00 28,217.50 41,888.44 33.04 865.68 {35.61) - 96,023.05
Profit for the year (a) - - 34,633.94 - - - - 34,633.94
Items that will not be reclassified to - - - - - (3.04) - (3.04)
profit and loss {b)
Items that will be reclassified to profit - - - - . - 4.78 4.78
and loss (c)
Total Comprehensive income for the year - - 34,633.94 - - (3.04) 4.78 34,635.68
{a+b+c)
Securities Premium received on issue of - 34,320.16 - - - - - 34,320.16
shares
Utilization during the year against share - (2.02) - - - - - (2.02)

issue expense
Dividend including DDT 3 =
Transfer to/from retained earnings 6,930.00 - (6,930.00) - - R . =

Employee Stock Option - - - - 284.63 - - 284.63

Balance as at March 31, 2022 31,984.00 62,535.64 69,592.38 33.04 1,150.31 (38.65) 4.78 | 1,65,261.50

Profit for the year (a) - - 57,910.15 - - 57.910.15

Items that will not be reclassified to E - - - 142.81 - 142.81

profit and loss (b)

Items that will be reclassified to profit - - - - - - (4.78) (4.78)
and loss (c)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year - = 57,910.15 - - 142.81 (4.78) 58,048.18

(a+b+c)

Securities Premium received on issue of - 34,713.04 - - - - - 34,713.04

shares

Utilization during the year against share - (6.56) - - - - = (6.56)

issue expense

Dividend including DDT -
Transfer to/from retained earnings 11,583.00 - {11,583.00) - - - - -
Employee Stock Option - - - - 59.54 i - 59.54
Balance as at March 31, 2023 43,567.00 97,242.12 | 1,15,919.53 33.04 1,209.85 104.16 - 2,58,075.70
Significant accounting policies and notes to the financial statements

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

For Singhi & Co. For and on behalf of the board of Axis Finance Limited
Chartered Accountants
ICA! Firm Registration No. 302049E /

3

Shweta Singhal Amitabh Chaudhry
Partner Chairman
Membership No.: 414420 DIN No: 00531120
Place of Signature: Mumbai

Date: April 13, 2023

Bipin Kumar Saraf

Managing Director
For 8.K.Khare & Co. DIN No: 06416744
Chartered Accountants (
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Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 51849

Aniruddha Joshi
Partner
Membership No.: 040852
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: April 13, 2023
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Rajneegh Kumar
Company Secretary
Membership No: A31230
Date: April 13, 2023



AXIS FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in rupees lakhs, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

Corporate information

Axis Finance Limited is a public Company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013. The Company is a Systemically Important Non Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial
Company (‘NBFC’) as defined under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’) Act, 1934 with effect
from September 12, 2011, holding Certificate of Registration No “N-13.02001".

The Company is mainly engaged in the business of financing activities. The Company is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Axis Bank Ltd. The Company’s registered office is at Ground floor, Axis House, C-2 Wadia
International Centre, P.B. Marg, Worli, Mumbai — 400025. Company’s Debt securities are listed at BSE
Limited.

These Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 have been approved and authorized for
issue by the Board of Directors of the Company at it’s meeting held on April 13, 2023.

2.1. Statement of Compliance, Basis of preparation and presentation of financial statements

2.2

(i) Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') as
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time, to
be read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) and relevant amendments rules issued
thereafter.

Any directions issued by the RBI or other regulators are implemented as and when they become
applicable. Further, the Company has complied with all the directions related to Implementation of Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed for Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) in accordance with the RBI
notification no. RBI/2019-20/170 DOR NBFC).CC.PD. N0.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020.

(ii) Historical Cost Convention

The Financial Statements have been prepared and presented on the going concern basis and at historical
cost, except for the following which have been measured at fair value:

- Certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value;

- Employee’s Defined benefit plans-plan assets as per actuarial valuation; and
- Derivative Financial Instruments

- Share Based payments.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the functional currency of the Company
and the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates. Except as
otherwise indicated, financial information presented in Indian rupees has been rounded to the nearest
lakhs.




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts are in rupees lakhs, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

2.3

2.4

2.5

3.1

3.11

Presentation of financial statements

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Profit and Loss are presented
in the format prescribed under Division Il of Schedule llI of the Act, as amended from time to time, for
NBFCs that are required to comply with Ind AS. The Statement of Cash Flows has been presented as per
the requirements of Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows.

Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only
offset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the
recognized amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle on a net
basis in all of the following circumstances:

-The normal course of business

-The event of default

-The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group and/or its counterparties

Use of Estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
estimates, judgements and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) and disclosures as of the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from these estimates. Accounting estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis and could change from period to period. Appropriate changes in estimates
are recognized in the periods in which the Company becomes aware of the changes in circumstances
surrounding the estimates. Any revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in the
period in which the estimate is revised and future periods. The critical estimates and judgements that have
significant impact on the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities at each Balance Sheet date are
enumerated in Note 3.18.

Significant accounting policies

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when
Company becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Date of recognition and initial measurement

All financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value. However, in the case of financial instruments
not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial instruments are added to the fair value. Purchases or sales of financial instruments that
require delivery of assets / liabilities within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company
commits to purchase or sell the asset / liabilities.
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3.1.2 Initial recognition, classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Based on the Business Model, the contractual characteristics of the financial assets and specific elections
where appropriate, the financial assets are classified into one of the three categories for measurement
and income recoghnition:
-Amortized Cost (AC)
-Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
-Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial asset is carried at amortized cost,

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both the following conditions :

a) The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the financial assets in
order to collect the contractual cash flows; and

b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specific dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding (SPPI).

After initial measurement and based on the assessment of the business model as asset held to collect
contractual cash flows and SPPI, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
effective interest rate (‘EIR’) method. Interest income and impairment expenses are recognised in
statement of profit and loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income
using the EIR method. Any gain and loss on derecognition is also recognised in statement of profit and loss.

The EIR method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating
interest over the relevant period. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the EIR, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Further other things remain the same (as in (a) and (b) above), if the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets, such asset/s are classified as held at FVOCI.

Financial assets included within the FVOCI category are measured subsequently at each reporting date at
fair value. Interest income and impairment loss are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Fair
value movements on subsequent measurement are recognised in the OCI.
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Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

In case of a financial asset that does not meet both the above conditions, it is classified as FVTPL.

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured subsequently at each reporting date at
fair value. Net gain or loss, including interest and other income are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

a) Business Model (BM) Assessment
In order to arrive at the appropriate Business Model, the following factors are considered by the
Company.
-How the performance of the business model (including the financial assets in that business model)
are evaluated and reported to key management personnel within the Company.
-The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets in it) and how
those risks are managed.

Changes in Business Model

The Company periodically reviews and updates the existing business model for its portfolio as long as
these changes are expected to be infrequent, significant to the entity's operations, and demonstrable
to external parties.

b) Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI) Test

Contractual Cash Flow Assessment
To determine whether a financial asset is measured at either amortized cost or FVOCI, the Company
has considered whether the cash-flows from the financial asset are solely for the payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI”).
For the purpose of Ind AS 109, principal and interest are defined as follows:
-Principal is the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition
-Interest is consideration for:
-The time value of money
-Credit risk associated with the principal amount
-In addition, interest may also include consideration for other basic lending risks such as liquidity risk
and costs of holding the asset (e.g. administrative costs)
-Interest may include a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement

If the contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding then the SPPI criteria is met.

The Company classifies its financial assets into the following four categories:
-Debt instruments at amortized cost
-Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
-Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
-Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
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3.1.3 Initial measurement, classification and subsequent measurement of Financial Liabilities and Equity
Instruments

The Company classifies these instruments as financial liabilities or equity instruments in accordance with
the substance of the contractual terms of the instruments.

Equity

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the face value
and proceeds received in excess of the face value are recognised as securities premium.

Financial liabilities

The Company's borrowings include bonds, commercial paper, borrowings from banks, etc. Debt securities
issued, subordinated liabilities and other borrowings are initially measured at fair value less directly
attributable transaction costs and subsequently measured at their amortised cost using the EIR method.

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement of financial liability is based on their classification.
The Company’s most of the Financial Liabilities are measured initially and subsequently measured at
amortized cost.

Undrawn loan commitments are not recorded in the balance sheet. However, these financial instruments
are in the scope of expected credit loss (‘ECL’) calculation

3.1.4 De-recognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

a) De-recognition of Financial Assets

A financial asset is derecognized only when

-The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

-Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the company has transferred an asset, the company evaluates whether it has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is
derecognized. Where the company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognized.

Where the company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognized if the company has not retained
control of the financial asset. Where the company retains the control of the financial asset, the asset is
continued to be recognized to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

b) De-recognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
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3.1.5 Reclassification of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional
circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line or in the period
the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets. The classification and
measurement requirements related to the new category apply prospectively from the first day of the first
reporting period following the changes in the business model that results in reclassification.

Reclassifications are expected to be very infrequent. Such changes must be determined by the Company's
senior management as a result of external or internal changes and must be significant to the Company's
operations and demonstrable to external parties.

Further re- classification is not allowed in following cases;
-Investments in equity instruments irrevocably designated as at FVOCI cannot be reclassified.
-Reclassification of financial liabilities.

3.1.6 Impairment of Financial Assets
The Company records allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) for all loans and debt investments,
together with loan commitments to customers.
The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset, unless there
has been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case the allowance is based on the
12 months’ expected credit loss. The 12 month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
At the end of each reporting period, the Company performs an assessment of whether the loan’s /
investment’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition by considering the change in the
risk of default occurring over the remaining life of the asset. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis based on a provision matrix which takes into account the Company’s historical
credit loss experience, current economic condition, forward looking information and scenario analysis.

The expected credit loss is a product of Exposure at Default (EAD), Probability of Default (PD) and Loss
given default (LGD). The Company has devised an internal model to evaluate the PD and LGD based on the
parameters set out in Ind AS 109. Accordingly, the financial assets have been segmented into three stages
based on their risk profiles. The three stages reflect the general pattern of credit deterioration of a
financial asset.

The company categorizes financial assets at the reporting date into stages based on the days past due
(DPD) status as under:

- Stage 1: 0 to 30 days past due

- Stage 2: 31 to 90 days past due

- Stage 3: more than 90 days past due

Probability of Default (PD): It is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. In order
to estimate the PDs, studies on defaults available in public domain and experience of the Parent (Axis Bank
Limited) have been taken into account.

Exposure at Default (EAD): EAD is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account
expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayment of principal and interest,
whether contractually scheduled or otherwise and expected drawdown on committed loan facilities and
accrued interest from missed payments. A credit conversion factor of 10% is applied for expected
drawdown on committed loan facilities.
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Loss Given Default (LGD): LGD is an estimate of the loss arising in case where a default occurs. It is based
on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the Company would expect to
receive, including from the realization of any security.

Based on the above, the Company categorizes its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 as under:

Stage 1: When loans are first recognized, the Company recognises an allowance based on 12 months’
expected credit loss.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company records
an allowance for the life time expected credit loss.

Stage 3: When a loan is credit impaired, the Company records an allowance for the life time expected
credit loss.

Credit — impaired Financial Assets

A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired” when one or more events, that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset, have occurred. Credit-impaired financial assets are
referred to as Stage 3 assets. Evidence of credit-impairment includes observable data about the following
events:

» Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

» A breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

¢ The lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;

* The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties; or

¢ The purchase of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

It may not be possible to identify a single discrete event, instead, the combined effect of several events
may have caused financial assets to become credit-impaired. The Company assesses whether debt
instruments which are financial assets measured at amortized cost or FVTOCI, are credit-impaired at each
reporting date. To assess if corporate debt instruments are credit impaired, the Company considers
factors, such as bond yields, credit ratings and the ability of the borrower to raise funding.

A loan is considered credit-impaired when a concession is granted to the borrower due to a deterioration
in the borrower’s financial condition, unless there is evidence that, as a result of granting the concession,
the risk of not receiving the contractual cash flows has reduced significantly and there are no other
indicators of impairment. For financial assets, where concessions are contemplated but not granted, the
asset is deemed credit-impaired when there is observable evidence of credit-impairment, including
meeting the definition of default. The definition of default includes unlikeliness to pay indicators and a
back-stop, if amounts are overdue for 90 days or more
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Significant Increase in Credit Risk

The Company monitors all financial assets, issued irrevocable loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts that are subject to the impairment requirements to assess whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk, since initial recognition. If there has been a significant increase in credit risk the
Company will measure the loss allowance based on lifetime rather than 12-month ECL. The Company’s
accounting policy is not to use the practical expedient that the financial assets with ‘low’ credit risk at the
reporting date are deemed not to have had a significant increase in credit risk. As a result, the Company
monitors all financial assets, issued irrevocable loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts that
are subject to impairment for significant increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company compares the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting date based on the remaining maturity of
the instrument with the risk of a default occurring that was anticipated for the remaining maturity at the
current reporting date when the financial instrument was first recognized. In making this assessment, the
Company considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable, and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking information, that is available without undue cost or
effort, based on the Company’s historical experience and expert credit assessment.

Given that a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition is a relative measure, a given change,
in absolute terms, in the probability of default (PD) will be more significant for a financial instrument with
a lower initial PD than compared to a financial instrument with a higher PD.

ECL is calculated as under:

Stage 1: The Company calculates the 12 months’ ECL based on the expectation of a default occurring
within 12 months from the reporting date. The expected 12-month PD is applied to the EAD and multiplied
by the expected LGD and discounted at the EIR.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company records
an allowance for life time expected credit loss as above, but the PD and LGD is estimated over the lifetime
of the loan.

Stage 3: For loans considered credit impaired, life time ECL is recognized. The method is similar to that for
Stage 2 loans / assets, with the PD set at 100%.

ECL based on simplified approach:

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date,
right from its initial recognition. However, if receivables contain a significant financing component, the
Company chooses as its accounting policy to measure the loss allowance by applying general approach to
measure ECL.

The Company also adopts a loss-based approach to calculate ECL for assets predominantly secured by
listed / quoted financial securities. (Refer Note 30).

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

fa)

Lountacs
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Write Off

Loans and Debt Securities are written off when the company has no reasonable expectations of recovering
the financial asset (either in its entirety or a portion of it). This is the case when the Company determines
that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts, subject to the write-off. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. The Company
may apply enforcement activities to the financial assets written off. Recoveries resulting from the
Company’s enforcement activities will result in impairment gains and will be recognized in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

3.1.7 Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters into forward contracts to hedge the foreign currency risk of firm commitments and
highly probable forecast transactions. Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of
each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the
timing of the recognition in the Statement of Profit and Loss depends on the nature of the hedging
relationship and the nature of the hedged item.

Cash Flow Hedges

A cash flow hedge is a hedge of the exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable to a particular
risk associated with a recognized asset or liability (such as all or some future interest payments on variable
rate debt) or a highly probable forecast transaction and could affect profit and loss. For designated and
qualifying cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument
is initially recognized directly in OCI within equity (cash flow hedge reserve). The ineffective portion of the
gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognized immediately in Finance Cost in the statement of profit
and loss. When the hedged cash flow affects the statement of profit and loss, the effective portion of the
gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recorded in the corresponding income or expense line of the
statement of profit and loss. When a hedging instrument expires, is sold, terminated, exercised, or when a
hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss that has been
recognized in OCI at that time remains in OCl and is recognized when the hedged forecast transaction is
ultimately recognized in the statement of profit and loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer
expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in OCl is immediately transferred to the
statement of profit and loss. The Company’s hedging policy only allows for effective hedging relationships
to be considered as hedges as per the relevant Ind-AS. Hedge effectiveness is determined at the inception
of the hedge relationship, and through periodic prospective effectiveness assessments to ensure that an
economic relationship exists between the hedged item and hedging instrument. The Company enters into
hedge relationships where the critical terms of the hedging instrument match with the terms of the
hedged item, and so a qualitative and quantitative assessment of effectiveness is performed.

Fair Value Hedges

Fair value hedges hedge the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability, or an
identified portion of such an asset, liability, that is attributable to a particular risk and could affect profit or
loss.

For designated and qualifying fair value hedges, the cumulative change in the fair value of a hedging
derivative is recognised in the statement of profit and loss in Finance Costs. Meanwhile, the cumulative
change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as part of the
carrying value of the hedged item in the balance sheet and is also recognised in the statement of profit
and loss in Finance Cost.
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3.2

The Company classifies a fair value hedge relationship when the hedged item (or group of items) is a
distinctively identifiable asset or liability hedged by one or a few hedging instruments. The financial
instruments hedged for interest rate risk in a fair value hedge relationship is fixed rate debt issued and
other borrowed funds. If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or where the
hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the hedge relationship is discontinued
prospectively. If the relationship does not meet hedge effectiveness criteria, the Company discontinues
hedge accounting from the date on which the qualifying criteria are no longer met. For hedged items
recorded at amortised cost, the accumulated fair value hedge adjustment to the carrying amount of the
hedged item on termination of the hedge accounting relationship is amortised over the remaining term of
the original hedge using the recalculated EIR method by recalculating the EIR at the date when the
amortisation begins. If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value adjustment is
recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Fair Value Measurement
The Company measures financial instruments such as investment in mutual funds at fair value at each
balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another marker
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

Fair value hierarchy

Ind AS 107, ‘Financial Instrument - Disclosure’ requires classification of the valuation method of financial
instruments measured at fair value in the Balance Sheet, using a three level fair-value-hierarchy (which
reflects the significance of inputs used in the measurements). The hierarchy gives the highest priority to
un-adjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and
lowest priority to un-observable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair-value-
hierarchy under Ind AS 107 are described below:

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on
entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level. This is the case for unlisted equity securities included in level 3.
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3.3 Property, plant and equipment (‘PPE’)

PPE are held for use in supply of services and for administrative purpose, used for more than one period
and not held for sale in the normal course of business. PPE and Capital work-in-progress (‘CWIP’) are
stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or recognhized as a separate asset, as
appropriate only if it is probable that the expenditure incurred with increase the future economic benefits
/ functionality capability of the asset and that the cost of the item can be reliably measured. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced and resulting
gain / loss, if any, is recognized in other income / expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year
the asset is derecognized. All other repair and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation, estimated useful life and residual value

The depreciation is calculated on straight line method using the rates arrived based on useful lives as
estimated by management. Depreciation on assets purchased during the period is provided on pro rata
basis from the date asset is available for use as intended by management. Item of PPE is derecognized
upon disposal, when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The residual
values, useful lives and method of depreciation of PPE are reviewed annually and adjusted prospectively.

The Company has used below estimated useful lives to provide depreciation and amortization on its
Property, plant and equipment.

Assets - Estimated Useful | Estimated Useful
' Life (in years) as Life (in years) as
' per Companies per Management |
| ‘ Act, 2013 |
Tangible Assets: J
_ Computers | 3 3 !
Servers ‘ 3 3
Furniture & Fixtures | 10 ] ] 10
Office Equipment | - 5
| Vehicles 8 4
' Land and Building | 60 )

Leasehold improvements = As per Lease term | As per Lease term

_ Intangible Assets: _ :
Software | 3 _ 5 '

The management has estimated, supported by independent assessment by professionals, the useful life of
the following class of asset.

The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of
the period over which the assets are likely to be used. Consequently, the useful life of certain vehicles and
software differ from the life prescribed in Schedule Il of the Act. Vehicles are depreciated over the
estimated useful life of 4 years which is lower than those indicated in schedule II.
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3.5

3.6

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Further, Company has made policy of considering the assets costing less than Rs. 10,000 as operating
expenses i.e., fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

Other intangible Assets and Amortization

Intangible assets are assets without physical substance, controlled by Company as a result of past events
and from which future economic benefits are expected to flow. Intangible asset includes computer
software. Intangible assets are stated at cost, net of accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses.

Such intangible assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortization and any
accumulated impairment losses. The useful life of these intangible assets is estimated at 5 years with zero
residual value. Amortization on assets purchased during the year is provided on pro rata basis from the
date asset is available for use. The residual values, useful lives and method of amortization are reviewed
annually and adjusted prospectively.

Intangible assets not ready for the intended use on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Intangible
assets under development.

Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of
profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Impairment of Assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company
estimates the asset’s recoverable amount.

A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions
used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The
reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment
loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit or
loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation
increase.

Recognition of Revenue

Revenue (other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable) is measured
at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts with
customers outlines a single comprehensive model of accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers and supersedes current revenue recognition guidance found within Ind AS.

The Company recognizes revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model as set out in
Ind 115:

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more
parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that
must be met.
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Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a
contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the
Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer,
excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that
has more than one performance obligation, the Company allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognize revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation

3.6.1 Interest Income

Interest income on a financial asset at amortised cost is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into
account the amount outstanding and the effective interest rate (‘EIR’). The EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash flows of the financial asset through the expected life of the financial asset
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial instrument. The
internal rate of return on financial asset after netting off the fees received and cost incurred approximates
the effective interest rate method of return for the financial asset. The future cash flows are estimated
taking into account all the contractual terms of the instrument.

The interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of non-credit impaired
financial assets (i.e. at the amortised cost of the financial asset before adjusting for any expected credit
loss allowance). For credit-impaired financial assets the interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to
the amortised cost of the credit-impaired financial assets (i.e. the gross carrying amount less the allowance
for ECLs).

3.6.2 Dividend income
Dividend income (including from FVOCI investments) is recognized when the Company’s right to receive
the payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the entity and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

3.6.3 Fees and Commission Income
Fees and commission income other than those that are integral part of EIR are recognized when the
company satisfies the performance obligation over time and as the related services are performed.

3.6.4 Net gain on Fair value changes
Any differences between the fair values of financial assets classified as FVTPL held by the Company on the
balance sheet date is recognised as an unrealised gain / loss. Any realised gain or loss on sale of financial
instruments measured at FVTPL is recognized in net gain / loss on fair value changes. Similarly, any
differences between the fair values of financial assets classified as fair value through other comprehensive
income are disclosed in the OCl. However, net gain / loss on derecognition of financial instruments
classified as amortized cost is presented separately under the respective head in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.
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3.6.5 Income from Direct assignment

Gains arising out of direct assignment transactions comprise the difference between the interest on the
loan portfolio and the applicable rate at which the direct assignment is entered into with the assignee, also
known as the right of Excess Interest Spread (EIS). The future EIS basis the expected cash flows on the
execution of the transaction, discounted at the applicable rate entered into with the assignee is recorded
upfront in the statement of profit and loss.

3.6.6 Upfront servicers fees booked on direct assignment

3.7

3.8

Servicer fees receivable for servicing loan contracts under direct assignment are discounted at the
applicable rate entered into with the assignee and recognized upfront in the balance sheet and amortized
on an actual cash flow basis over the contractual terms.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term

deposits and short term liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency at the rates of exchange on the reporting date. Exchange difference on restatement of
all other monetary items are recognized as Derivative assets/liabilities.

3.9 Provisions and Contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expenses
relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases
where there is liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company
does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statement.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements since this may result in the recognition of
income that may never be realized. However, when the realization of income is virtually certain, then the
related asset is not a contingent asset and gets recognized.
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3.10

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these
estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods. These are reviewed at each year end and
reflect the best current estimate.

Finance costs

Finance costs include interest expense computed by applying the effective interest rate on respective
financial instruments measured at amortized cost. Financial instruments include bank term loans, non-
convertible debentures, commercial papers, subordinated debts and exchange differences arising from
foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. Finance
costs are charged to the Statement of profit and loss.

3.11 Employee Benefits

(A) Short-term employee benefits

Liabilities for salaries and wages, including non-monetary benefits in respect of employees’ services up to
the end of the reporting period, are recognized as liabilities (and expenses) and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

The Company also recognizes a liability, and records an expense for bonuses (including performance-linked
bonuses) where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive
obligation.

Provident Fund

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is defined contribution scheme. The Company recognizes
contribution payable to provident fund scheme as expenditure, when an employee renders the related
service.

ESIC and Labour welfare Fund (LWF)
The Company’s contribution paid / payable during the year to ESIC and LWF are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Gratuity
The Company provides for the gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering all employees. The

Company accounts for liability of future gratuity benefits based on an external actuarial valuation on
projected unit credit method carried out for assessing liability as at the reporting date. Gratuity is funded
with an approved trust.

In respect of Gratuity being post-retirement benefits, remeasurements, comprising actuarial gains and
losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling, (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding
net interest) are reflected immediately in the Balance Sheet with a charge or credit recognized in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.
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Re-measurement recognized in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings,
and will not be reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Past service costs are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on the earlier of:
» the date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
* the date that the Company recognises related restricting costs.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under employee
benefit expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

* service costs (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments
and settlements); and

* net interest expenses or income.

The Company presents the above two components of defined benefit costs in the Statement of Profit and
Loss in the line item ‘Employee Benefits Expense’.

Share based payments

The Parent Bank (Axis Bank Ltd.) issues stock options to certain select employees of the Company. These
transactions are recognized as equity-settled share based payment transactions. The stock compensation
expense is determined based on grant date fair value of options and the parent banks estimate of options
that will eventually vest and is recognized on a straight line basis over the vesting period in the statement
of Profit and Loss.

For options granted till FY 2020, corresponding impact is given to Other Equity as “Deemed Capital
Contribution” as the cost was not recovered by the parent bank.

However, for the options granted post FY 2020 (with effect from 1 July 2021), the Parent Bank had started
recovering the cost from the Company.

3.12 Other Income & Expenses
All Other income and expense are recognized in the period they occur.

3.13 Leases
The Company as a lessee

The Company’s lease assets primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Company assesses
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the
Company assesses whether: (1) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (2) the Company has
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (3) the
Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.
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At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes right — of — use (“ROU”) asset and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term
of twelve months or less (short term leases) and low value leases. For these short term and low value
leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the
lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they
will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any
initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease term and useful life of the under lying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for
recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair
value less cost to sell and the value in use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset
generates cash flows that are largely dependent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable
amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortised cost at the present value of the future lease payments.
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily
determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of the leases. Lease
liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company
changes its assessment on exercise of an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments
have been classified as financing cash flows.

3.14 Goods and services tax paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

3.15

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the goods and services tax paid, except when the tax incurred on
a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the tax authority, in which case, the tax paid is
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable. The
net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority is included as part of receivables or
payables, respectively, in the balance sheet.

Taxes
Current income Tax

Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance
with the Income Tax Act 1961. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the Income tax are those
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

-When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

-In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets re recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

-When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

-In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interest in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realized to the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.
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3.16 Earnings Per Share

3.17

3.18

Basic Earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
Equity Shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
Earnings considered in ascertaining the EPS is the net profit for the year and any attributable tax thereto
for the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Events after the reporting period
Events after the reporting period are those events, both favorable and unfavorable that occur between
end of the reporting period and the date on which the financial statements are approved for issue.

Adjusting Events
Events which provide further evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period are
adjusting events. Financials have been adjusted for those events.

Non-adjusting Events

Events which are of indicative of conditions that arise after the end of the reporting period are Non-
adjusting events. Disclosure of the nature of event and estimate of its financial effect have been made in
the financial statements.

There have been no events after the reporting date that require disclosure in these financial statements.

Statement of Cash Flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the year is adjusted for the effects
of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or
payments and items of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash
flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

3.19 Segment Reporting

Operating business segment results are reviewed regularly by the Company's Chief Operating Decision
Maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their performance.
Business segment is the primary segment comprising of ‘Financing activity’. As the Company operates only
in a single business segment, no segment information thereof is given as required under Ind AS 108.
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3.20 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of Ind AS financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and

assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities and the
accompanying disclosures, as well as the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgments

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, which
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

a) Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI and the business
model test. The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial
assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes
judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and
their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are
managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated. The Company monitors financial assets
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income that are derecognised prior
to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with
the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Company’s continuous
assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to
be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and so a
prospective change to the classification of those assets.

b) Fair Value of Financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using various valuation
techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this
is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these
factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.
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c) Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method

The Company’s EIR methodology, recognises interest income / expense using a rate of return that
represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural life of loans given
/ taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages and other
characteristics of the product life cycle (including prepayments and penalty interest and charges). This
estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life-cycle
of the instruments, as well expected changes to India’s base rate and other fee income/expense that are
integral parts of the instrument.

d) Impairment of financial asset

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, in
particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when
determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates
are driven by a number of factors, changes which can result in different levels of allowances. It has been
the Company’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience and adjust
when necessary. The impairment loss on loans and advances is disclosed in more detail in Note 30.

e) Provisions and other contingent liabilities

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened element of
litigation risk inherent to its operations. As a result, it is involved in various litigation, arbitration and
proceedings in the ordinary course of the Company’s business. When the Company can reliably measure
the outflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific case and considers such outflows to be probable,
the Company records a provision against the case. Where the probability of outflow is considered to be
remote, or probable, but a reliable estimate cannot be made, a contingent liability is disclosed. Given the
subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the Company takes into
account a number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and historical evidence from
similar incidents. Significant judgement is required to conclude on these estimates.

f) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recorded on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts, at the rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The
ultimate realisation of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable profits
during the periods in which those temporary differences become deductible. The Company considers the
expected reversal of deferred tax liabilities and projected future taxable income in making this
assessment. The amount of the deferred tax assets considered realisable, however, could be reduced in
the near term if estimates of future taxable income during the carry-forward period are reduced.

g) Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plans and the present value of the defined benefit obligation are based on
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of
the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the
; valuation and its long-term nalure, a delined benelil obligation-is highly sensilive Lo changes ir!_‘l_l_te:seh\\
}Xumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. %

O
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3.21 Standards / amendments to Standards issued but not yet effective:
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA
amended the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2023. The effective date for adoption of
these amendments is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 2023.

The amendments are as below:-

ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information, together with other information, is material
when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of general-purpose financial
statements. The Company is evaluating its material accounting policies which will be disclosed as a part of
financial statements from the date of application of this amendment.

Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes

The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and
decommissioning obligations. The amendments narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption in
paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so that it no longer applies to transactions that,
on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. At present deferred
tax is recognized by the Company on such transactions. The Company expect that this amendment will not
have any impact.

Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates.
The amendment has also introduced a definition of “accounting estimates”. The Company has disclosed all
estimates considered in its financial statements. Further the Company will evaluate the material estimates
used in preparation of financial statements and shall be disclosed as a part of financial statements from
the date of application of this amendment.

3.22 Assessment of COVID - 19 Impact
The Covid 19 pandemic which impacted business and economies across the world over last two years,

continues to pose uncertainties even till date. The management has evaluated the actual and potential
impact of the pandemic on its Financial Statements.

The Company holds adequate impairment allowance as at March 31, 2023 against potential impact of
COVID-19 based on the information available at this point in time. The impairment allowance held by the
Company is in excess of the RBI prescribed norms. Based on the internal assessment undertaken, the
Company believes it has sufficient liquidity to honour its liabilities due over the next 12 months.




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in rupees lakhs, except per share data and as stated otherwise})

4 Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balances with banks 45,536.59 14,585.53
Investment in highly liquid securities 29,979.47 20,000.00
Total 75,516.06 34,585.53

4a Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Fixed Deposits with Bank = 183.13
Total s 183.13

5 Receivables

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
a) Trade Receivables considered good — Unsecured
- Related parties - 552.30
- Others 13.88 49.68
b) Other Receivables considered good — Unsecured = -
Total Receivables 13.88 601.98
Less: Impairment loss allowance = -
Total 13.88 601.98

No amount is due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person, or from firms or private companies

respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

5a Receivables ageing as at 31 March, 2023

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment#

Less than 6
months

6 months -
1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good,
Unsecured

13.88

13.88

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have
significant increase in credit risk

{iif) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables— considered good

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant
increase in credit risk

{vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired

Receivables ageing as at 31 March, 2022

Particulars

Outstanding for fo

llowing periods from due

date of payment#

Less than 6
months

6 months -
1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good,
Unsecured

601.98

601.98

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have
significant increase in credit risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables— considered good

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant
increase in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired

#The ageing of the receivable is determined from the date of the transaction
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6 Loans
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

(1) Term Loans at amortised cost 22,10,443.13 16,16,865.53
(2) Loans repayable on demand at amortised cost 20,016.92 19,420.16

22,30,460.05 16,36,285.69
Less: Impairment loss allowance (29,835.09) (27,975.99)
Total 22,00,624.96 16,08,309.70
(B) Out of above
(i) Loans in India
Loans to Public Sector - =
Loans to Others 22,30,460.05 16,36,285.69

22,30,460.05 16,36,285.69
Less: Impairment loss allowance (29,835.09) (27,975.99)
Total 22,00,624.96 16,08,309.70
(ii) Loans outside India - -
Total (i+ii) 22,00,624.96 16,08,309.70
(C) Out of above
1) Secured by tangible assets 17,96,377.78 13,12,519.64
2) Covered by Bank/Government Guarantees 38,603.06 44,930.90
3) Unsecured 3,95,479.21 2,78,835.15
Total Loans 22,30,460.05 16,36,285.69
Less: Impairment loss allowance {29,835.09) (27,975.99)
Total 22,00,624.96 16,08,309.70
Notes:-

1) Loans to the extent of X in Lakhs 18,34,980.85 (March 31, 2022: 13,57,450.54) are secured by:

(i) Hypothecation of assets and / or

(i) Mortgage of property and / or

(iii) Corporate guarantee/personal guarantee of directors in certain cases over and above of security and / or

(iv) Government guarantees

(v) Pledge of shares & other financial securities.

2) There is no loan asset measured at FVOCI or FVTPL or designated at FVTPL.

3) There are no Loans or advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, Directors, KMPs and the related parties {as defined under the Companies
Act, 2013}, either severally or jointly with any other person that are: (a) repayable on demand or (b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment during
the year ended 31 March, 2023 (31 March, 2022: NIL).

4) Refer Note 30 for Credit quality of financial assets and Expected credit loss.
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7 Investments

As at March 31, 2023

Particulars Amortised Cost At Fair value through Total
Profit & Loss Account
1 2 (3=1+2)

Held for Trading Investments (In India)

Quoted
Investment in Government Securities - 2,535.16 2,535.16
Investment in Debt Securities . 4,587.70 4,587.70

Held till Maturity Investments {In India)

Quoted

Investment in Government Securities 44,856.33 - 44,856.33
Investment in Debt Securities 10,327.90 = 10,327.90
Unguoted

Investment in Debt Securities 28,800.00 28,800.00
Total — Gross (A) 83,984.23 7,122.86 91,107.09
Less: Impairment loss allowance (B) 174.50 - 174.50
Total — Net (A-B) 83,809.73 7,122.86 90,932.59

1) There is no investment measured at FVOCI or designated at FVOCI.
2) There are no investment outside India

As at March 31, 2022
Particulars Amortised Cost At Fair value through Total
Profit & Loss Account
1 2 (3=1+2)
Held till Maturity Investments (In India)
Quoted
Investment in Government Securities 44,314.05 - 44,314.05
Unguoted
Investment in Debt Securities 24,721.50 - 24,721.50
Total — Gross (A) 69,035.55 B 69,035.55
Less: Impairment loss allowance (B) 111.72 - 111.72
Total — Net (A-B) 68,923.83 - 68,923.83

1) There is no investment measured at FVOCI or designated at FVOCI.
2) There are no investment outside India
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8 Other financial assets

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Security Deposits 885.71 371.47
Advance Rental 88.15 90.95
Excess Interest Spread 12,071.03 -
Other Assets* 585.35 613.03
Total 13,630.24 1,075.45

*It includes prepayment of Rs 414.33 lakhs (March 31, 2022 : Rs 74.95 lakhs)

9 Deferred taxation & Income Tax:

In accordance with Ind AS 12 “Income Taxes”, the Company has accounted for deferred taxes during the year. Deferred tax comprises of timing

difference on account of following:-

S As at As at
Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability) March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Depreciation (115.49) (118.52)
Unamortized Processing Fees 634.58 1,822.41
Lease and Deposit Fair Value 26.06 46.52
Fees on Loans Undisbursed - 246.70
NCD Interest accrued and transaction cost (220.77) (267.64)
Term Loan at Amortised Cost 43.69 -
Fair Value of Investments 63.55 54.44
EIR Adjustment on Interest income (0.16) (18.64)
Cash flow hedge reserve - {1.61)
Expected Credit Loss 7.508.87 7,040.99
Actuarial gain/loss on valuation of gratuity 31.91 6.97
Total 7,972.24 8,811.62
Movement of Deferred Tax Assets/(Liability)
For the year ended March 31, 2023
Deferred Tax |Recognised in | Recognised in Recognised Deferred Tax
Deferred taxes in relation to Asset/(Llab'lllty) Stater.nent of Sther . directly in | Total movement ASSEt{(LIabIhty)
ason April 1, Profit and |Comprehensiv equity Closing as on
2022 Loss e Income March 31, 2023
Deferred tax assets
Unamortized Processing Fees 1,822.41 (1,187.83) - {1,187.83) 634.58
Lease and Deposit Fair Value 46.52 (20.46) (20.46) 26.06
Fees on Loans Undisbursed 246.70 (246.70) = = (246.70) =
Fair Value of Investments 54.44 9.11 9.11 63.55
Expected Credit Loss 7,040.99 467.88 - 467.88 7,508.87
Actuarial gain/loss on valuation of gratuity 6.97 24,94 - - 24.94 31.91
Deferred tax liabilities
Depreciation (118.52) 3.03 - 3.03 (115.49)
Cash flow hedge reserve (1.61) 1.61 - - 1.61 -
EIR Adjustment on Interest income (18.64) 18.48 18.48 {0.16)
Term Loan at Amortised Cost - 43.69 = = 43.69 43.69
NCD Interest accrued and transaction cost (267.64) 46.87 46.87 (220.77)
8,811.62 (839.38) - = (839.38) 7,972.24
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Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
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Movement of Deferred Tax Assets/(Liability)
For the year ended March 31, 2022

Deferred Tax

Recognised in

Recognised in

Deferred Tax

Deferred taxes in relation to Asset/(Liab.iIity) Stater'nent of Other . R;::cgtr:;s;ld Total movement Asset((uab“ity’
as on April 1, Profitand |Comprehensiv equity Closing as on
2021 Loss e Income March 31, 2022
Deferred tax assets
Unamortized Processing Fees 1,585.16 227.25 227.25 1,822.41
Lease and Deposit Fair Value 16.19 30.33 = 30.33 46.52
Fees on Loans Undisbursed 327.43 {80.73) (80.73) 246.70
Fair Value of Investments 82.23 (27.79) - (27.79) 54.44
Expected Credit Loss 5,948.38 1,092.61 - 1,092.61 7,040.99
Provision for Impairment on Trade Receivables 1.33 (1.33) - (1.33) -
Actuarial gain/loss on valuation of gratuity 12.48 {5.51) - (5.51) 6.97
Deferred tax liabilities
Depreciation (91.25) (27.27) - (27.27) (118.52)
Fair Value gain/loss on MF (0.15) 0.15 0.15 -
Cash flow hedge reserve - (1.61) - (1.61) (1.61)
EIR Adjustment on Interest income - (18.64) {18.64) (18.64)
NCD Interest accrued and transaction cost (316.59) 48.95 48.95 (267.64)
Term Loan at Amortised Cost {0.62) 0.62 ¥ 0.62 -
7,574.59 1,237.03 - 1,237.03 8,811.62

for the year

For the year

The components of income tax expense are as under ended ended
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Current Tax 18,638.61 13,006.87
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years = =
Deferred tax relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 792.95 (1,237.62)
Total tax charge 19,431.56 11,769.25
Current Tax 18,638.61 13,006.87
Deferred tax 792.95 (1,237.62)

Income Tax recognised in Other comprehensive income

For the year

For the year

ended ended
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 48.03 (1.02)
Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss {1.61) 1.61
Total income tax recognised in other comprehensive income (debit) 46.42 0.59
Current Tax Assets [net)

As at As at
Particulars

March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Current Tax Assets {net of provision for income tax) 7,465.77 3,261.56
Current tax liabilities (net)
Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Current tax liabilities (net of advance income tax) 3,364.94 2,418.79
The reconciliation of estimated income tax expense at tax rate to income tax expense reported in profit or loss is as follows:
For the year For the year

ended ended
Profit before tax 77,341.71 46,403.19
Applicable income tax rate (%) 25.17 25.17
Income tax expense calculated at applicable income tax rate 19,465.37 11,678.75
Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected income tax expense to reported income tax expense:
Difference other than temporary in nature on account of tax benefits and others (33.81) 90.50
Income tax expense recognised in profit and loss 19,431.56 11,769.25
Effective tax rate for the period 25.12% 25.36%
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10 Property, Plant and Equipment

Particulars Computers Office Furniture & Leasehold Vehicles Land and Total
equipment fixtures Improvements Building

Cost:

As at 1 April 2021 388.47 28.30 17.06 - 66.71 4.50 505.04

Additions 259.68 16.82 57.40 44.03 - 377.93

Disposals . (0.10) - (42.51) - (42.61)

As at 31 March 2022 648.15 45.02 74.46 - 68.23 4.50 840.36

Additions 107.88 23.52 12.92 31.50 239.67 = 415.49

Disposals - - - - - = =

As at 31 March 2023 756.03 68.54 87.38 31.50 307.90 4.50 1,255.85

Depreciation and impairment:

As at 1 April 2021 254.42 8.05 3.05 - 40.94 0.50 306.96
Disposals = = - {42.51) ~ (42.51)
Depreciation charge for the year 136.53 6.40 4.07 . 14.72 0.08 161.80
As at 31 March 2022 390.95 14.45 7.12 - 13.15 0.58 426.25
Disposals = = - = = = -
Depreciation charge for the year 149.55 10.80 8.07 0.53 47.68 0.08 216.71
As at 31 March 2023 540.50 25.25 15.19 0.53 60.83 0.66 642.96

Net book value:
As at 31 March 2022 257.20 30.57 67.34 = 55.08 3.92 414.11
As at 31 March 2023 215.53 43.29 72.19 30.97 247.07 3.84 612.89
1) The Company does not have any benami properties as on reporting date.

2) The Company has not revalued any of its PPE during the year.

3) Title deeds of the immovable property (Land) is held in the name of the Company.

4) There is no charge on Land and Buildings.
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11 Other Intangible Assets

12

Particulars Software Total
Computer software
Cost:
As at 1 April 2021 1,693.38 1,693.38
Additions 822.99 822.99
Disposals 5 -
As at 31 March 2022 2,516.37 2,516.37
Additions 623.71 623.71
Disposals {18.00) (18.00)
As at 31 March 2023 3,122.08 3,122.08
Accumulative amortisation and impairment:
As at 1 April 2021 731.21 731.21
Disposals < -
Amortisation charge for the year 464.51 464.51
As at 31 March 2022 1,195.72 1,195.72
Disposals (2.04) (2.04)
Amortisation charge for the year 552.93 552.93
As at 31 March 2023 1,746.61 1,746.61
Net book value Softwares:
As at 31 March 2022 1,320.65 1,320.65
As at 31 March 2023 1,375.47 1,375.47
Intangible assets under development
As at 31 March 2022 252.16 252.16
As at 31 March 2023 13.44 13.44
1) The Company has not revalued any of its fixed assets during the year.
11a Capital-Work-in Progress [CWIP) and Intangible assets under development ageing as at March 31, 2023
Amount in CWIP for a period of
cwiIP Less than 1 More than 3 Total
1-2 years 2-3 years
year years
Projects in progress 13.44 #: - 13.44
Projects temporarily suspended - - - -
CWIP completion schedule
To be completed in
cWIP Less than1 More than 3
1-2 years 2-3 years
year years
Project 1 - API Integration 4.38
Project 2 - Applicant Tracking to managing the
talent acquisition process 4.78 -
Project 3 - DSA onboarding portal 4.28 -
Capital-Work-in Progress (CWIP) and Intangible assets under development ageing as at March 31, 2022
Amount in CWIP for a period of
cwip Less than1 More than 3 Total
1-2 years 2-3 years
year years
Projects in progress 121.96 76.42 51.08 2.70 252.16
Projects temporarily suspended - - -
CWIP completion schedule
To be completed in
cwiIP Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3years More than 3
year years
Project 1 - Corporate Loan Management system 31.98 - =
Project 2 - NPA identification solution 39.00 - - -
Project 3 - Data warehouse and others 102.78 38.40 40.00 -
Other non-financial assets
Particulars As at As at
March 31, March 31,
Prepaid expenses 894.94 755.59
Balances with government authorities /Q,\NGH/\ |
- GST Input tax credit /¥ ~F N\ 88.43 282.01
Total 983.37 1,037.60
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13 Derivative financial instruments

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Notional Fair Value Fair Value Notional Fair Value Fair Value
Amounts Assets Liabilities Amounts Assets Liabilities

Particulars

Part |

(i) Currency derivatives;
Spot and forwards - - - 45,409.98 407.28 -

Subtotal (i) E = E 45,409.98 407.28 =

(i) Interest rate derivatives
Forward Rate Agreements and Interest Rate swaps - - - - - .

Subtotal (ii) - - - - -

Total Derivative Financial Instruments {i}+{ii) - - - 45,409.98 407.28 =

Part Il

Included in above (Part I) are derivatives held for hedging and

risk management purposes as follows:

i) Fair value hedging:
Currency derivatives E = - = -
Interest Rate derivatives - - . - ” y

Subtotal (i) - - . - =

(i) Cash flow hedging:
Currency derivatives - - - 45,409.98 407.28 -

Interest rate derivatives . - . " -
Subtotal (ii) - - - 45,409.98 407.28 -

(iii} Undesignated Derivatives

Currency Swaps -
Subtotal (iii) = - = 3 :
Total Derivative Financial Instruments (i)+{ii)+(iii) - - - 45,409.98 407.28 -

Note: The Company enters into derivatives for risk management purposes. Derivatives held for risk management purposes includes hedges that are meeting the
hedge accounting requirements. The table shows that fair values of derivative financial instruments recorded as assets or liabilities together with their notional
amounts. The notional amounts indicate the value of transactions outstanding at the year and are not indicative of either the market risk or credit risk.
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14 Payables
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

i) Trade Payables
a) total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises - 18.62
b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises

-Due to Related parties 112.76 61.09

-Due to others 95.73 348.78
ii) Other Payables
a) total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises 269.47 239.04
b} total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 3,381.30 1,650.63
Total 3,859.26 2,318.16

14a

1

(%)

1) No amount is due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person, or from firms or private companies

respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

Trade Payables ageing as at March 31, 2023

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment#

Particulars
Less than 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

(i) MSME 269.47

269.47

(ii) Others* 3,589.79

3,589.79

(iii) Disputed dues — MSME =

{iv) Disputed dues - Others

1) Includes unbilled amount of Rs 3,381.30 lakhs

Trade Payables ageing as at March 31, 2022

Outstanding for following periods from due date of paymenti

Particulars
Less than 1 year

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

(i) MSME 257.66

1-2 years

257.66

(i) Others* 2,060.50

2,060.50

(iii) Disputed dues — MSME -

(iv) Disputed dues - Others

1) Includes unbilled amount of Rs 1,889.67 lakhs
2) The ageing of Trade Payables is determined from the date of the transaction

Debt Securities

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

At Amortised Cost (In India)

Secured

Non Convertible Debentures (NCD)

7,08,698.37

7,16,585.63

Unsecured

Commercial paper

93,000.00

1,10,000.00

Less: Unamortised Discounting Charges

(5.342.92)

(1,372.43)

Total

7,96,355.45

8,25,213.20

Security details for Secured non convertible debentures

1) Debentures are secured by: 1. First charge by way of mortgage on immovable property. 2. Pari passu charge by way of hypothecation of book debts and

accounts receivable of minimum 1 to 1.1 time cover.

2) Non Convertible Debentures carry interest @ 5.25% to 8.80%.Unsecured commercial paper carry interest @ 7.85% to 8.16%. In respect of commercial paper,
maximum amount outstanding during the period was % in Lakhs 22,223.81 (31 March 2022: 2,99,342.09).

3) There are no redeemed debentures which the Company power to reissue,

4) There have been no default in payment of principal or interest during the year.
5) There are no Debt Securities measured at FVTPL or measure at designated at FVTPL

6) There is no Debt Instrument which has been issued Outside India

Particulars of Secured non convertible debentures

. As at
Particulars Face Value Asset Cover ROI Qty March 31, 2023
NCD maturing within one year 10,00,000 1.0x to 1.10x 0% to 8.40% 18550 1,98,150.17
NCD maturing after one year 10,00,000 1.0x to 1.10x 0% to 8.40% 45840 4,45,502.23
NCD maturing after one year 1,00,000 1.0x to 1.10x 8.07% to 8.35% 64800 65,045.97
129190 7,08,698.37
Particulars Face Value Asset Cover ROI Qty .
March 31, 2022
NCD maturing within one year 10,00,000 1.0x to 1.10x 0% to 7.27% 18220 1,98,821.98
NCD maturing after one year 10,00,000 1.0x to 1.10x 0% to 7.27% 49990 5,17,763.65
68210 7,16,585.63
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16

17

18

Particulars of Commercial Paper

As at
| Maturity date Face Value Qty March 31, 2023
CP maturing within one year 5,00,000 18,600 93,000.00
18,600 93,000.00
. As at
Maturity date Face Value Qty March 31, 2022
CP maturing within one year 5,00,000 22,000 1,10.000.00
22,000 1,10,000.00
Borrowings (Other than debt securities)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
At Amortised Cost {In India)
Secured
Loan from related party 70,495.00 23,571.42
Loan from other Banks 9,66,455.49 4,79,979.81
Foreign currency term loan from bank 13,856.86 45,905.43
Total 10,50,807.34 5,49,456.66
Secured

1. Term Loan amounting to % in Lakhs 10,50,807.34, (31 March 2022: 5,49,456.66) as referred above are secured by pari passu first charge on all present and
future book debts, receivables, loan assets of the Company. These carry interest @ 7.00% to 9.45%.
2. There have been no default in payment of principal or interest during the year.

3. Term Loan from Banks will be repaid as per below

Repayment As at As at
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Loans maturing within one year 2,39,005.94 1,43,048.90
Loans maturing after one year 8,11,801.40 4,06,407.76
10,50,807.34 5,49,456.66

Subordinated Liabilities

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

At Amortised Cost (In India)

Unsecured

Subordinated debt (Non-convertible debentures) 1,53,020.77 98,956.16
Total 1,53,020.77 98,956.16
1) There have been no default in payment of principal or interest during the year.
2) There are no Debt Securities measured at FVTPL or measure at designated at FVTPL
3) There is no Debt Instrument which has been issued Qutside India
; As at
Particulars Face Value ROI Qty March 31, 2023

NCD maturing after one year 10,00,000 7.40% to 8.80% 6700 70,596.27
NCD maturing after one year 1,00,00,000 7.42% to 8.34% 800 82,424.50

7500 1,53,020.77

. As at
Particulars Face Value ROI Qty March 31, 2022

NCD maturing after one year 10,00,000 7.40% to 8.80% 6700 70,578.30
NCD maturing after one year 1,00,00,000 7.42% to 7.90% 275 28,377.86

6975 98,956.16
{In case of Perpetual Debt, reference of call option date is given)
Other financial liabilities
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Advances from customers 7.477.48 1,536.17
Other financial liabilities* 63,191.33 27,066.66
Total 70,668.81 28,602.83

(*This also includes book overdraft, unapportioned credits pertaining to loans, assignee payable, etc.)
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19 Provisions

21

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Provision for employee benefits
-Provision for gratuity 126.78 27.69
-Employee benefit payable (performance bonus, incentive/statutory bonus) 2,802.00 1,958.79
Total 2,928.78 1,986.48
20 Other non-financial liabilities
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Undisputed statutory dues 904.75 964.16
Total 904.75 964.16
Equity share capital
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Authorised Share Capital
1,00,00,00,000 (31 March 2022: 1,00,00,00,000) equity shares of 10/- each 1,00,000.00 1,00,000.00
1,00,000.00 1,00,000.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up:
59,08,13,886 (31 March 2022: 53,85,12,500) equity shares of 10/- each 59,081.39 53,851.25
59,081.39 53,851.25
(a) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 53,85,12,500 48,22,50,000
Issued during the year 5,23,01,386 5,62,62,500
Reductions during the year = =
Balance at the end of the year 59,08,13,886 53,85,12,500

During the year ended March 31, 2023 the Company has issued equity shares to existing shareholders on rights issue in three tranches:-
1) 2,69,25,625 equity shares of X10 each at premium of 65 each amounting to $20,194.22 Lakhs in the month of May 2022.

{b) Terms, rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of X 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote

per share.

{c) In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company,
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the

shareholders.




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts are in rupees lakhs, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

22

(d) Shares held by holding/ultimate holding Company and/or their subsidiaries
Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding Company, ultimate holding Company and their subsidiaries are as

below:

Name of shareholder

As at

As at

Axis Bank Limited {the holding Company) and its Nominees

59,08,13,886 (31 March 2022: 53,85,12,500) equity shares of X 10/- each

59,081.39

53,851.25

(e) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Particulars

As at
% of Holding

As at
% of Holding

Equity shares of £ 10 each fully paid
Axis Bank Limited (the haolding Company) and its Nominees

100%

100%

f) Shareholding of Promoters as at March 31, 2023 as under:

Shares held by promoters as at March 31, 2023

% Change during the year

S.No Promoter name

No. of Shares

%of total shares

1 Axis Bank Limited

59,08,13,886

100%

No change in shareholding

Total

Shareholding of Promoters as at March 31, 2022 as under:

Shares held by promoters as at March 31, 2022

% Change during the year

S.No Promoter name

No. of Shares

%of total shares

1 Axis Bank Limited

53,85,12,500

100%

No change in shareholding

Total

(g) The Board of directors has not recommended any dividend to shareholders for the year ended 31 March, 2023 (31 March, 2022: NIL).

Other equity

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Securities Premium

Balance at the beginning of the year 62,535.64 28,217.50
Add:- Addition during the year 34,713.04 34,320.16
Less:- Utilization during the year against share issue expense (6.56) (2.02)
Balance at the end of the year 97,242.12 62,535.64
Statutory Reserve u/s 45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934
Balance at the beginning of the year 31,984.00 25,054.00
Add:- Addition during the year 11,583.00 6,930.00
Balance at the end of the year 43,567.00 31,984.00
Deemed Capital Contribution
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,150.31 865.68
Add:- Addition during the year 59.54 284.63
Balance at the end of the year 1,209.85 1,150.31
Retained Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year 69,592.38 41,888.44
Total Comprehensive income for the year 57,910.15 34,633.94
Less:- Final Dividend - -
Less:- Dividend distribution tax on final dividend - -
Less:- Transfer to statutory reserve (11,583.00) (6,930.00)
Balance at the end of the year 1,15,919.53 69,592.38
Other Comprehensivelncome (OCI)
Remeasurement of Post Employment Benefit
Balance at the beginning of the year (38.65) (35.61)
Add:- Addition during the year 142.81 (3.04)
Balance at the end of the year 104.16 (38.65)
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Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Cash Flow Hedge Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 4.78 -
Add:- Addition during the year (4.78) 478
Balance at the end of the year . 4.78
Other Comprehensivelncome {OCl) 104.16 (33.87)

General Reserves

Balance at the beginning of the year 33.04 33.04
Add:- Addition during the year A =
Balance at the end of the year 33.04 33.04
Total 2,58,075.70 1,65,261.50

Securities Premium
Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. It can be utilised only for limited purposes in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Statutory Reserve u/s 45-IC of RBI Act, 1934
Statutory reserve represents reserve fund created pursuant to Section 45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934 through transfer of specified percentage

of net profit every year before any dividend is declared. The reserve fund can be utilised only for limited purposes as specified by RBI from

time to time and every such utilisation shall be reported to the RBI within specified period of time from the date of such utilisation.

Deemed Capital Contribution
The Company select employees had entitlement to receive shares of Axis Bank Limited and the company subsequently did not have

obligation to settle the award and hence, the award was treated as Equity settled plan til! 30 June 2021. Accordingly, the Company has
recognized an expense for the grant date fair value of award over the vesting year and corresponding credit as “Deemed Capital
Contribution” by parent. The Company will continue to do so for all grants awarded till 31 March 2020 in this manner.

However, with effect from 1 July 2021, the Company has changed accounting for ESOPs granted by Axis Bank Limited (the “Holding
Company”) to select employees of the Company. The Holding Company had decided to recover the cost of such options from the

Company and accordingly, the Company has recorded an expense of Rs 860.15 (Lakhs) during current period ended March 31, 2023.

Debenture Redemption Reserve
Debenture Redemption Reserve has not been created as the Company has issued its Non convertible debentures through private
placement.

Retained Earnings
Retained earnings represents the surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss and appropriations.

General Reserves
General reserves represents the balance of reserves transferred on merger of Axis Private Equity Limited with the Company.

Cash Flow Hedges Reserve
It represents the cumulative gains/{losses) arising on revaluation of the derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges through
ocl.
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23 Interest Income

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Interest on Loans (at amortised cost)

2,05,768.31

1,31,425.26

Interest income from investments (at amortised cost) 5,978.96 5,497.77
Interest income from investments (FVTPL) 1,658.67 202.25
Interest on Fixed Deposits with Banks 182.97 86.99
Interest on Lease Deposits 35.96 10.93
Total 2,13,624.87 1,37,223.20
23a Fees and commission Income
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Cheque / NACH Bouncing Charges 142.88 58.27
Pre/Part payment Charges 149.96 28.34
Foreclosure Charges 1,223.48 410.93
Miscellaneous fees 2,129.83 -

Others 679.68 127.40
Total 4,325.83 624.94

24

Net gain on fair value changes

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

10n trading portfolio

Net gain on fair value changes {(Realised) 562.45 2,434.74

Net gain on fair value changes (Unrealised) 12.94 -

Total 575.39 2,434.74

25

Finance Costs

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Interest on borrowings 55,898.39 17,707.67
Interest on debt securities 46,741.61 35,998.07
Amortisation of discount on commercial paper 5,235.70 8,671.57
Interest on subordinated liabilities 9,319.37 6,338.84
Interest on lease liabilities 113.29 165.71
Other Finance expense 2,158.25 853.69
Interest On Income Tax 172.03 -

Total 1,19,638.64 69,735.55

26 Impairment on financial instruments

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Loans* 6,471.37 7,412.30
Investments 62.79 (119.20)
Trade Receivables - (5.27)
Total 6,534.16 7,287.83

Note: It includes loan written off during the year amounting to Rs. 4,612 lakhs (Previous year: Rs. 3,047 lakhs).




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in rupees lakhs, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

27 Employee Benefits Expenses

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Salaries and wages 17,259.24 12,257.86
Share based payments to employees 919.69 596.60
Contribution to provident and other funds 535.83 440.59
Gratuity expenses 316.80 99.02
Staff welfare expenses 218.44 101.05
Total 19,250.00 13,495.12
28 Depreciation, amortization and impairment

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Property, plant and equipment 216.71 161.83
Other Intangible assets 552.93 464.51
Right-of-use assets 787.09 392.93
Total 1,556.74 1,019.27
29 Other expenses
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Rent, Rates and Taxes 263.79 216.20
Electricity expenses 138.71 69.24
Repairs and maintenance - others 350.70 186.91
Printing and stationery 71.97 39.86
Travelling and conveyance 560.70 357.46
Professional fees 1,999.71 1,418.19
CSR expenditure ** 644.53 552.12
Director sitting fees 124.00 62.50
Auditors Remuneration * 84.10 65.27
Telephone and internet expenses 112.01 82.71
Business promotion 21.62 20.55
Rates & taxes 9.67 12.24
Royalty charges 348.52 226.05
Service charges 298.00 238.42
Office expenses 247.30 206.38
GST Expense out (50% of input credit) 1,891.20 1,078.93
Subscription Exps 339.65 194.13
Collection agency payout 230.66 75.74
Waiver Write off charges 47.48 84.23
Insurance expenses 15.66 0.59
Miscellaneous expenses 537.01 209.21
Total 8,336.99 5,396.93




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in rupees lakhs, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

* Payment to Auditors

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particular March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

As Auditors

Audit Fee 75.00 60.00
Tax Audit Fee =

Certification and other fees 5.00 5.00
Reimbursement of expenses 4.10 0.27
Total 84.10 65.27

** Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure

Particular

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year

644.53

552.12

(b) Amount spent in cash during the year on:

(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset

(ii) On purposes other than (i) above

552.12

(c) Excess / (Shortfall) at the end of the year

(d) Total of previous years shortfall

(e) Reason for shortfall

{f) Nature of CSR activities (activities as per Schedule VII)

552.12

(g) Details of related party transactions

(h) Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering

into a contractual obligation

Total

552.12




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in rupees lakhs, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

30 Credit Quality of Financial Assets & Expected Credit Loss (ECL)
A) Loans and Advances
(i) Loansand advances {at amortised cost)

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Total - Gross 22,30,460.05 16,36,285.69
Less: Impairment loss allowance 29,835.09 27,975.99
Total - Net 22,00,624.96 16,08,309.70
a) Secured by tangible assets 18,34,980.84 13,57,450.54
b) Unsecured 3,95,479.21 2,78,835.15
Total - Gross 22,30,460.05 16,36,285.69
Less: Impairment loss allowance 29,835.09 27,975.99
Total - Net 22,00,624.96 16,08,309.70

(ii) Credit quality of assets (Refer Note 44 for credit quality)

Note: Facilities covered by ECLGS are clubbed according to nature of the parent loan.

Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Performing
Standard 21,68,458.96 = ~ 21,68,458.96
Past due but not impaired 26,307.42 - 26,307.42
Non Performing
Indivdually Impaired - - 5,858.58 5,858.58
Total 21,68,458.96 26,307.42 5,858.58 22,00,624.96
Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2022

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Performing
Standard 15,87,952.92 13,391.58 16,01,344.50
Non Performing -
Individually Impaired - - 6,965.20 6,965.20
Total 15,87,952.92 13,391.58 6,965.20 16,08,309.70

(iii) Reconciliation of Gross carrying amount-loans

Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying amount opening balance 16,00,995.23 14,893.21 20,397.25 16,36,285.69
New assets originated (refer note 1 14,26,344.50 1,561.97 897.64 14,28,804.11
below)
Assets repaid (excluding write offs) (8,21,763.17) (1,757.31) (15,721.55) (8,39,242.03)
Transfers to Stage 1 12,876.96 (9,888.35) (2,988.61) -
Transfers to Stage 2 (26,608.85) 26,617.83 (8.98) -
Transfers to Stage 3 (3,924.19) (2,577.48) 6,501.67 -
Amounts written off - - 4,612.28 4,612.28
Gross carrying amount closing balance 21,87,920.48 28,849.87 13,689.70 22,30,460.05
Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2022

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying amount opening balance 9,78,741.91 22,593.62 31,518.70 10,32,854.23
New assets originated (refer note 1 10,72,830.13 2,309.57 210.39 10,75,350.09
below)
Assets repaid (excluding write offs) (4,56,491.26) (5,926.06) (6,453.76) (4,68,871.08)
Transfers to Stage 1 25,261.78 (20,688.75) (4,573.03) -
Transfers to Stage 2 (17,121.91) 18,296.38 (1,174.47) -
Transfers to Stage 3 (2,225.42) {1,691.55) 3,916.97 -
Changes to contractual cash flows due to - - -
modifications not resulting in derecognition
Amounts written off - = (3,047.55) (3,047.55)
Gross carrying amount closing balance 16,00,995.23 14,893.21 20,397.25 16,36,285.69

Note 1: New assets originated represents fresh disbursals made during the year. Classification of new assets originated in stage1,2,3 is based on

year end staging.
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30 Credit Quality of Financial Assets & Expected Credit Loss (ECL)

A)
(iv)

v

Loans and Advances

Reconciliation of Expected Credit Loss (ECL)/allowance

Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 St